Michelle Morris, Public Document Pack

Managing Director / Rheolwr Gyfarwyddwr

T: 01495 356139 Ext./Est: 5100

E: committee.services@blaenau-gwent.gov.uk

Contact:/Cysylltwch â: Democratic Services



THIS IS A MEETING WHICH THE PUBLIC ARE ENTITLED TO ATTEND

4th November 2020

Dear Sir/Madam

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE

A meeting of the Democratic Services Committee will be held in virtually via Microsoft Teams - if you would like to attend this meeting live via Microsoft Teams please contact committee.services@blaenau-gwent.gov.uk on Monday, 9th November, 2020 at 10.00 am.

Yours faithfully

Morns

Michelle Morris Managing Director

<u>AGENDA</u>

Pages

1. <u>SIMULTANEOUS TRANSLATION</u>

You are welcome to use Welsh at the meeting, a minimum notice period of 3 working days is required should you wish to do so. A simultaneous translation will be provided if requested.

2. <u>APOLOGIES</u>

We welcome correspondence in the medium of Welsh or English. / Croesawn ohebiaith trwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg neu'r Saesneg.

Municipal Offices	Swyddfeydd Bwrdeisiol
Civic Centre	Canolfan Dinesig
Ebbw Vale	Glyn Ebwy
NP23 6XB	NP23 6XB

a better place to live and work lle gwell i fyw a gweithio To receive.

3. <u>DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND</u> <u>DISPENSATIONS</u>

To consider any declarations of interest and dispensations received.

4.DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE5 - 12

To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 16th March, 2020.

5. DRAFT INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL 13 - 22 REPORT

To consider report of the Head of Organisational Development.

6. <u>PROPOSED FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME</u> 23 - 24 2020/21

To consider report of the Chair of the Democratic Services Committee.

7. <u>TIME OF FUTURE MEETINGS</u>

To consider.

To: Councillor J. C. Morgan (Chair) Councillor B. Summers (Vice-Chair) Councillor M. Cross Councillor G. Collier Councillor J. Collins Councillor G. A. Davies Councillor G. L. Davies Councillor M. Day Councillor L. Elias Councillor K. Hayden Councillor M. Holland Councillor H. McCarthy Councillor L. Parsons Councillor K. Pritchard Councillor T. Sharrem

> All other Members (for information) Manager Director

Chief Officers

This page is intentionally left blank

COUNTY BOROUGH OF BLAENAU GWENT

REPORT TO:	THE CHAIR AND MEMBERS OF THE	
	DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE	
SUBJECT:	DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE –	
	<u>16^{тн} МАRCH, 2020</u>	
REPORT OF:	DEMOCRATIC OFFICER	

PRESENT: COUNCILLOR M. CROSS (CHAIR)

Councillors M. Cook

- N. Daniels
- M. Day
 - P. Edwards
 - M. Holland
 - J. Holt
 - H. McCarthy, B.A. (Hons)
 - J. Millard
 - J. C. Morgan
 - K. Pritchard

ALSO: Scrutiny Chairs & Vice-Chairs

Councillors J. Hill

- C. Meredith
- L. Parsons
- S. Thomas
- J. Wilkins

AND: Head of Governance & Partnerships (Statutory Head of Democratic Services Organisational Development Manager

ITEM	SUBJECT	ACTION
1.	SIMULTANEOUS TRANSLATION	
	It was noted that no requests had been received for the simultaneous translation service.	
2.	APOLOGIES	
	Apologies for absence were received for:-	
	Councillors G. A. Davies, K. Hayden, W. Hodgins, G. Paulsen, T. Sharrem, H. Trollope.	
3.	DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST	
	AND DISPENSATIONS	
	There were no declarations of interest or dispensations reported.	
	Councillors J. C. Morgan and S. Thomas joined the meeting at this juncture.	
4.	DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE	
	Consideration was given to the minutes of the meeting held on 5 th November, 2019, whereupon:	
	Councillor S. Thomas left the meeting at this juncture.	
	Apology for Absence	
	It was noted that Councillor Lee Parson's apology for absence had not been recorded.	
	The Committee AGREED, subject to the foregoing, that the Minutes be received as a true record of proceedings.	

5. <u>ANNUAL REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT</u> <u>REMUNERATION PANEL FOR WALES 2020/2021</u>

Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Organisational Development.

Councillors N. Daniels and S. Thomas joined the meeting at this juncture.

At the invitation of the Chair, the Organisational Development Manager spoke briefly to the report and highlighted the following salient points contained therein:

- The Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales (IRPW) published an annual report detailing its determinations for the upcoming year.
- For 2020/2021, the Panel had determined that there would be an increase of £350 a year in the basic salary.
- No additional increases would be paid to senior salary holders in 2020/2021 – only the basic salary element increase would be received.
- Councils were committed to 'paperless working' and without electronic access Members would be significantly limited in their ability to discharge their duties. It was not appropriate for facilities required by Members to be only available within council offices within office hours.
- The responsibility of each Council through its Democratic Services Committee to provide support should be based on an assessment of the needs of its Members.
- The Panel had determined that there would be no change to mileage rates which Members were entitled to claim.

Reimbursement of Costs of Care – there was no change to the reimbursement of Costs of Care, this remained at a maximum of £403 per month upon production of receipts from the carer. However, the Panel was continuing to review this provision as it was clear that very few Members were utilising it and on 13th February, 2020 the Panel published a draft supplementary report – 'Principals relating to the Reimbursement of Costs of Care'. This consultation would end on 9th April, 2020 and comments prior to the publication of the final report would be appreciated.

In addition, previously it had been the decision of each principal Council to determine how the cost of care was published. For 2020/2021 the Panel had removed that option and had stipulated that authorities should only publish the total amount reimbursed during the year.

The views of Members were, thereupon, sought in relation to the report.

Paperless Working – a Member referred to paragraph 2.9.2 of the report i.e. "Councils were committed to 'paperless working' and without electronic access Members would be significantly limited in their ability to discharge their duties".

Taking into the consideration the Covid 19 pandemic which would affect everyone, it now was definitely the time for the Council to come into the 21st Century in terms of its ICT provision and as the Council was not currently complying with this determination there was a need for this matter to be addressed urgently.

The Head of Governance & Partnerships acknowledged the important point relating to the Covid 19 outbreak and advised that this would be pursued as part of the Emergency Response Team arrangements. In terms of compliance, it was reported that the Council was complying with the Panel's determination as all Members had been offered ICT provision and were able to access this outside of normal office hours.

The Member continued by stating that Members had received contradictory advice in terms of devices i.e. some had been offered laptops but some had declined this on the advice received and had purchased I Pads, however, accessibility issues were still being experienced by those Members who were using laptops. He concluded by stating in his opinion this determination was not being complied with and this issue needed to be addressed urgently.

Another Member stated that further guidance needed to be sought in terms of ICT provision and what would work best for Councillors.

The Chair pointed out that the Council could not insist that all Members used ICT but for those Members who used the devices further assistance should be provided as there were some issues with access particularly at the weekends.

In reply to a question regarding testing of telephone/video conferencing facilities, the Head of Governance & Partnerships advised that this would be discussed and pursued as part of the governance arrangements and would take into account demographics. It was noted that Council's Constitution also outlined governance arrangements during an emergency situation and this would also be reviewed as part of that process.

The Leader confirmed that he had spoken to the Managing Director regarding this matter and advised that these discussions would continue and would be brought into political arena as soon as possible.

A Member said that he hoped that the wellbeing of staff was being carefully considered, as some staff as part of their duties met with members of the public. Focus should be given to this primary group of officers.

For clarification, the Head of Governance & Partnerships advised that Council's had no jurisdiction to amend the determinations of the Panel and the Senior Salary Bands were detailed on page 38 of the Panel's Annual Report. The Chair added that there was an option for any individual to opt personally and in writing to receive a lower amount.

	Upon a vote being taken it was unanimously it was,
	AGREED to recommend to Council, subject to the foregoing, that the report be accepted and Option 1 be endorsed, namely that the determinations contained in the IRPW Annual Report for 2020/2021 be agreed.
6.	ANNUAL REPORT OF THE HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC
	SERVICES
	The report of the Head of Governance & Partnerships (Statutory Head of Democratic Services) was submitted for consideration.
	The Head of Governance & Partnerships spoke in detail to the report which provided a summary of the comprehensive arrangements that were in place to support Members. The points raised in the earlier item were noted and Members were advised that advice and guidance in terms of ICT provision would be sought.
	Members views were, thereupon, sought in relation to the report.
	Modern.Gov Agenda Management System – concern was expressed that Members were unable to view 'confidential' items on this system. In addition, these items were unable to viewed on the I Pad 'app'.
	The Head of Governance and Partnerships whilst undertaking to pursue this matter pointed out that 'confidential' items could be accessed via Members' laptops.
	The additional comments/question were raised:
	 Most people used android devices and this should have been pursued earlier by the I.T. department.
	 If Members were being asked to use a variety of platforms could separate passwords be provided to access these sites?

- There was a need for the Council to focus on how it would move forward in terms of its ICT arrangements in the future. One local authority had established a Members Working Group that would produce its own report and this would be used to supplement the reports provided by officers.

The Chair proposed that a representative from the Shared Resource Service (SRS) be invited to the next meeting of the Committee in order that Members had the opportunity to ask these poignant questions. As the date for the next meeting of the Committee had yet to be set, the Chair confirmed that a Special Committee would be convened specifically to discuss issues in relation to ICT arrangements.

It was pointed out that the SRS was currently undertaking priority work as part of the emergency response arrangements to the Covid-19 pandemic and it was acknowledged by the Chair that this work would need to take precedence.

This course of action was AGREED accordingly.

Upon a vote being taken it was unanimously it was,

FURTHER AGREED to recommend to Council, subject to the foregoing, that the report be accepted and Option 2 be endorsed, namely that the Committee had made specific recommendations for Council for consideration prior to approval.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5

Executive Committee and Council only Date signed off by the Monitoring Officer: Date signed off by the Section 151 Officer:

Committee: The Chair & Members of	the Democratic Services Committee
Date of meeting:	9 th November 2020

Report Subject:	Draft Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales 2021/22
Portfolio Holder:	Councillor N.J. Daniels
Report Submitted by:	Andrea J Prosser Head of Organisational Development

Reporting F	Pathway							
Directorate Management Team	Corporate Leadership Team	Portfolio Holder / Chair	Audit Committee	Democratic Services Committee	Scrutiny Committee	Executive Committee	Council	Other (please state)
х	х			х			х	

1.0 **Purpose of the Report**

1.1 To inform Members of the proposals contained within the draft report of the Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales for 2021/22.

2.0 Scope and Background

- 2.0.1 The report considers the main proposals included within the 2021/22 draft report of the Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales (the Panel) as they relate to Blaenau Gwent County Borough Council.
- 2.0.2 The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 extended the responsibilities of the Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales (the Panel) and its powers under Section 142 to decide (prescribe) payments to members of relevant authorities.
- 2.0.3 On an annual basis the Panel publish its report on Members remuneration. The draft annual report for 2021/22 (attached at Appendix 1, point 7.2 – published October 2020) details the determinations for the upcoming year.
- 2.0.4 Although the draft IRPW report is in respect of the Panel's determinations for 2021/2022, the consideration has inevitably been influenced by the impact of the coronavirus pandemic. The ongoing issues affect the operation of all local authorities and will continue to do so for the foreseeable future.
- 2.0.5 As with all the Panel's Annual Reports the determinations on member remuneration are underpinned by the principles set out within Section 1 of the report within appendix 1. In May 2020 the Panel published a Supplementary Report that set out specific principles relating to the provision of financial support for care needs. These are incorporated in Section 10 of appendix 1 and will be included in future Annual Reports.

2.1 Basic & Senior Salaries

2.1.1 The Panel remains aware that the key activities required of an elected member of a principal council vary. Duties undertaken should enable all members to discharge their core non-executive responsibilities in the governance of their council and in representing those living in their ward.

Despite the pandemic, Panel members continue meeting with the Chairs of Democratic Services Committees, their officers and councillors. The Panel has also, through varied correspondence with councils and individual council members and others, maintained its ongoing dialogue. The position generally expressed by councillors and officers remains that the basic workload discharged by all elected members is substantial and exceeds 3 days per week.

- 2.1.2 When making financial determinations for the draft Annual Report, the Panel has considered the progression of the variety of benchmark figures for the period from 2012 to 2020. Any adjustments in recent years have been in keeping with the Panel's principle that its determinations should be affordable and acceptable. This principle is maintained in the proposed increase for 2021/2022 an increase in the basic salary of elected members of £150.
- 2.1.3 This salary shall be paid by each principal authority in Wales from 1 April 2021 to each of its elected members unless any individual member opts personally and in writing to receive a lower amount

2.2 **Executive**

- 2.2.1 Many Councils operate with a cabinet (Executive) of 10 (the statutory maximum) others choose to have a smaller cabinet and the range of individual portfolios is much greater. The Panel's previous determinations contained flexibility for each council to decide the appropriate range of portfolios to meet local needs and to adjust payments within the Executive to reflect responsibility.
- 2.2.2 The Panel continues to take the view that Executive members should be considered as working the equivalent of full time (around 40 hours per week) but not necessarily nine to five. Continued discussions with members and officers in recent years have reinforced this conclusion.

2.3 Chairs of Committee

- 2.3.1 There is a significant difference in the responsibilities and functions of chairing different committees. Councils do not have to pay chairs of committees and it is a matter for each council to decide which, if any, are remunerated. This allows councils to take account of differing levels of responsibility.
- 2.3.2 Where chairs of committees are paid then the remuneration for 2021/22 will be £23,161.

2.3.3	Payment of basic & senior salaries for 2021/22 are therefore:-

	2020/21	2021/22
	£	£
Basic Salary	14,218	14,368
Senior Salaries		
Leader	44,450	44,921
Deputy Leader	31,450	31,783
Executive Members	27,450	27,741
Committee Chairs	22,918	23,161
Leader of Largest Opposition Group	22,918	23,161
Leader of other political groups	17,918	18,108

2.4 Leader of Largest Opposition Group

2.4.1 The Panel remains of the view that a council must make a senior salary available to the leader of the largest opposition group and has determined that this role should be remunerated at £23,161.

2.5 **Civic Heads and Deputies**

2.5.1 The Panel had previously allowed councils to vary salaries of civic heads and deputy civic heads to reflect the specific responsibilities attached to the roles. However, Councils strongly expressed to the Panel that elected members do not wish to make decisions and as such, the choices and options were removed in 2019.

In the case of civic salaries, if paid, the payment for Band 3 is set at £23,161 for a civic head and at the Band 5 salary of £18,108 for a deputy civic head (Determination 3). A council may decide not to apply any civic salary to the posts of civic head and or deputy civic head.

2.6 **Presiding Member**

2.6.1 Councils are reminded that if a presiding member is appointed they do not have to be remunerated. If they are remunerated the post will count towards the cap and be paid at a Band 3 senior salary of £23,161.

2.7 **Specific or additional senior salaries**

2.7.1 Councils can apply for specific or additional salaries that do not fall within the current Remuneration Framework or which could not be accommodated within the maximum number of senior salaries.

2.8 **Job Share Arrangements**

- 2.8.1 Some Councils have also raised the possibility of operating some senior salary posts on a 'job share' arrangement. The Panel is supportive of this principle and have determined that:-
 - For members of an executive each 'share' will be paid 50% of the appropriate salary
 - The Statutory maximum for cabinets cannot be exceeded and both job sharers will count towards the maximum

- It is the number of persons in receipt of a senior salary, not the number of senior salary posts that count towards the cap
- The Panel must be informed of the details of any job share arrangements

2.9 **Supporting the Work of Elected members**

- 2.9.1 The Panel expects the support provided should take account of the specific needs of individual members. The functions of Democratic Services Committees include a requirement to review periodically the level of support provided to members to carry out their duties and the Panel would expect these committees to carry this out and bring forward proposals to the full council as to what is considered to be reasonable. Any proposals should be made with due regard to Determinations 9 and 10 of the report.
- 2.9.2 The Panel considers it is necessary for each elected member to have ready use of e-mail services, and electronic access to appropriate information via an internet connection. The Panel does not consider it appropriate that elected members should be required to pay for internet related services to enable them to discharge their council duties as a ward member, committee member or cabinet member.

Councils are committed to 'paperless working' and without electronic access members would be significantly limited in their ability to discharge their duties. It is not appropriate for facilities required by members to be available only within council offices within office hours.

2.9.3 The responsibility of each council through its Democratic Services Committee to provide support should be based on an assessment of the needs of its members. When members' additional needs or matters of disability apply, or there are specific training requirements indicated, each authority will need to assess any particular requirements of individual members.

2.10 Key Factors underpinning the Panel's determinations

- 2.10.1 The basic salary, paid to all elected members, is remuneration for the responsibility of community representation and participation in the scrutiny, regulatory and related functions of local governance for the time equivalent of three days a week. Any time commitment beyond three days is an unpaid public service contribution.
- 2.10.2 The prescribed salary and expenses must be paid in full to each member unless an individual has independently and voluntarily opted in writing to the authority's proper officer to forego all or any element of the payment. It is fundamental there is transparency in this process so any possible suggestion that members are put under pressure to forego some of the salaries is avoided.
- 2.10.3 The following must be applied: Determination 6:

- a) An elected member must not be remunerated for more than one senior post within their authority.
- b) An elected member must not be paid a senior salary and a civic salary.
- c) All senior and civic salaries are paid inclusive of basic salary.
- d) If a council chooses to have more than one remunerated deputy leader, the difference between the senior salary for the deputy leader and other executive members should be divided by the number of deputy leaders and added to the senior salary for other executive members in order to calculate the senior salary payable to each deputy leader.

Determination 7: Members in receipt of a Band 1 or Band 2 senior salary cannot receive a salary from any National Parks Authority or Fire Rescue Authority to which they have been appointed. They remain eligible to claim travel and subsistence expenses and reimbursement of costs of care.

Determination 8: Members in receipt of a Band 1 or Band 2 salary cannot receive any payment from a Community or Town Council of which they are a member other than travel and subsistence expenses and reimbursement of costs of care.

2.11 Reimbursement of Mileage, Other Travel & Subsistence Costs

2.11.1 The Panel has determined there will be no change to mileage rates which members are entitled to claim. All authorities may only reimburse travel costs for their members undertaking official business within and or outside the authority's boundaries at the current HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC) rates which are:-

45p per mile	Up to 10,000 miles in a year by car
25p per mile	Over 10,000 miles in a year by car
5p per mile	Per passenger carried
24p per mile	Motor cycles
20p per mile	Bicycles

2.11.2 The Subsistence rates will be as follows, these rates are in line with Welsh Government Rates:-

£28 per day	Day allowance for meals, including breakfast, where not provided in the overnight charge
£200 per night	London
£95 per night	Elsewhere
£30 per night	Stay with friends / family

2.11.3 Recommended practice is that overnight accommodation should usually be reserved and paid for on behalf of members by the Authority, in which case the authority may set its own reasonable limits. – we would not normally divert from these levels.

2.12 Contribution towards costs of care and personal assistance

- 2.12.1 The purpose of this section is to enable people who have personal support needs and or caring responsibilities to carry out their duties effectively as a member of an authority. The Panel believes that additional costs of care required to carry out approved duties should not deter any individual from becoming and remaining a member of an authority or limit their ability to carry out the role. The Panel has adopted specific principles related to support for the costs of care which were the subject of a Supplementary Report published in February 2020.
- 2.12.2 The Panel has reviewed the arrangements for this financial support and proposes the following changes:
 - a) As payments are taxable under the current HMRC rules, full reimbursement is not possible so for clarity this will be retitled to "Contribution towards the costs of care and personal assistance". It will still require receipts to accompany claims.
 - b) Claims can be made in respect of a dependant under 16 years of age, or a minor or adult who normally lives with the member as part of their family and who cannot be left unsupervised.
 - c) Clarification in respect of a member's own care or support needs: Reimbursement may be claimed where the support and or cost of any additional needs are not available or are not met directly by the authority such as Access to work, Personal Payments, Insurance. These could arise when the needs are recent and or temporary
- 2.12.3 Members, including co-opted members are entitled to claim towards the costs of care and personal assistance, for activities that the individual council has designated official business or an approved duty which might include appropriate and reasonable preparation and travelling time. It is a matter for individual authorities to determine specific arrangements to implement this; each authority must ensure that any payments made are appropriately linked to official business or approved duty.
- 2.12.4 The Panel has reviewed the maximum monthly payment in recognition that this has not changed for several years. Information indicates that monthly costs and claims vary considerably. These can depend on the number of dependants, their ages and other factors. Therefore the monthly cap will be replaced with the following arrangements:
 - Formal (registered with Care Inspectorate Wales) care costs to be reimbursed in full.
 - Informal (unregistered) care costs to be reimbursed up to a maximum rate equivalent to the Real Living Wage at the time the costs are incurred.

For clarification, care costs cannot be paid to someone who is a part of a member's household. Reimbursement shall only be made on production of receipts from the carer.

2.12.5 Within Annex 2, point 2, paragraph 22, the draft report states, "The maximum amount of the cost of care payable by an authority is to be determined by the Panel in its Annual or Supplementary Reports"

Point 2.12.4 above has superseded this cap and the IRPW has confirmed they will amend the final report once the panel has taken into account the consultation responses.

2.12.6 The Panel continues to recognise the issues relating to the publication of this legitimate expense and has retained the requirements for publication set out in Annex 4. To support current members and to encourage diversity the Panel urges authorities to promote and encourage greater take-up of the contribution towards costs of care and personal assistance

2.13 Entitlement to Family Absence

- 2.13.1 An elected member is entitled to retain a basic salary when taking family absence under the regulations irrespective of the attendance record immediately preceding the commencement of the family absence.
- 2.13.2 When a senior salary holder is eligible for family absence, they will continue to receive the salary for the duration of the absence.
- 2.13.3 It is a matter for the authority to decide whether or not to make a substitute appointment. The elected member substituting for a senior salary holder taking family absence will be eligible to be paid a senior salary, if the authority so decides.

If the paid substitution results in the authority exceeding the maximum number of senior salaries which relates to it, as set out in the Panel's Annual Report, an addition to the maximum will be allowed for the duration of the substitution.

2.13.4 When a Council agrees a paid substitution for family absence the Panel must be informed within 14 days of the date of the decision, of the details including the particular post and the duration of the substitution.

2.14 Sickness Absence for Senior Salary Holders

- 2.14.1 The Family Absence Regulations are very specific relating to entitlement, absence for reasons of ill health is not included. The Panel has considered this and is amending the framework to provide specific arrangements for long term sickness of Senior salary holders.
- 2.14.2 A senior salary holder on long term sickness can, if the authority decides, continue to receive remuneration for the post held (the maximum length of sickness absence is proposed as 26 weeks or until the individual's term of office ends).

- 2.14.3 It will be a decision for the Council whether to make a substitute appointment but the substitute will be eligible to be paid the senior salary appropriate to the post.
- 2.14.4 If the paid substitution results in the authority exceeding the maximum number of senior salaries payable an addition will be allowed for the duration of the substitution. The Panel must be informed within 14 days of the decision and the authority's Schedule of Remuneration amended accordingly.

2.15 **Payments to Co-opted Members**

2.15.1 The Panel has determined that a daily/half daily fee remains appropriate remuneration for the role undertaken by co-opted members of the Council as follows:-

Chairs of Standards and Audit Committees	£268 (4 hours & over) £134 (up to 4 hours)
Ordinary members of standards committees who also chair standards committees for community & town councils	£238 (4 hours & over) £119 (up to 4 hours)
Ordinary members of standards committees, education scrutiny committee, crime & disorder scrutiny committee and audit committee	£210 (4 hours & over) £105 (up to 4 hours)

- 2.15.2 Reasonable time for pre-meeting preparation is eligible to be included in claims made by co-opted members, the extent of which can be determined by the appropriate officer in advance of the meeting.
- 2.15.3 Travelling time to and from the place of the meeting can be included in the claims for payments made by the co-opted member (up to the daily rate).
- 2.15.4 The appropriate officer within the authority can determine in advance whether the meeting is programmed for a full day and the meeting will be paid on this basis even if the meeting finishes before four hours has elapsed.
- 2.15.5 Meetings eligible for the payment of fees include other committees and working groups (including task & finish groups), pre meetings with officers, training and attendance at conferences or any other formal meeting to which co-opted members are requested to attend.
- 2.15.6 The Council can decide on the maximum number of days in any one year for which co-opted members may be paid. Blaenau Gwent County Borough Council has previously decided that 10 days is the maximum.

3. **Options for Recommendation**

3.1 Democratic Services Committee to consider and agree the Draft IRPW proposals for 2021/2022 prior to Consideration by full Council.

Option 1:

Agree with the determinations set out in the draft IRPW report in Appendix 1 for 2021/2022

Option 2:

Consider each of the determinations contained in the draft IRPW report for 2021/2022 and give comments for submission to the IRPW as part of the consultation process that ends on 23rd November 2020.

4. Evidence of how does this topic supports the achievement of the Corporate Plan / Statutory Responsibilities / Blaenau Gwent Wellbeing Plan

5. Implications Against Each Option

5.1 Impact on Budget (short and long term impact)

Based upon current arrangements, the additional costs for 2021/22 are estimated to be £12,000.

5.2 **Risk including Mitigating Actions**

Failure to comply with the Panel's determinations will result in reputational damage for the Council. This is mitigated by Democratic Services Committee and Council considering and agreeing the determinations.

5.3 Legal

The report outlines the plans of the IRPW in terms of elected member remuneration which will become regulation.

It is also the responsibility of the Council to establish our position on how to respond to any Freedom of Information requests we receive in relation to reimbursement of costs of care. The IRPW states within annex 4 of appendix 1, that it is not the intention to disclose details of individual's claims.

5.4 **Personnel**

There are no direct staffing implications from this report.

6. Supporting Evidence

Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales Draft Report 2021/22 <u>https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-09/independent-remuneration-panel-draft-annual-report-2021-2022.pdf</u>

6.1 **Performance Information and Data** Not applicable to this report

6.2 **Expected outcome for the public** Not applicable to this report

6.3 Involvement (consultation, engagement, participation)

Not applicable to this report

- 6.4 **Thinking for the Long term (forward planning)** Not applicable to this report
- 6.5 **Preventative focus** Not applicable to this report
- 6.6 **Collaboration / partnership working** Not applicable to this report
- 6.7 Integration(across service areas) Not applicable to this report
- 6.8 **EqIA(screening and identifying if full impact assessment is needed)** Not applicable to this report

7. Monitoring Arrangements

- 7.1 State how the work will be monitored e.g. through scrutiny or directorate performance management arrangements
- 7.2 Background Documents /Electronic Links

Appendix 1

• <u>https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-09/independent-</u> remuneration-panel-draft-annual-report-2021-2022.pdf

DRAFT DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

Meeting Dates / Deadlines	Report Title	Purpose of Report	Lead Officer	Council Meeting Date
9 th November 2020	Draft Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales	To inform Members of the proposals contained with the draft report of the Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales	Rhian Hayden	
	Forward Work Programme	To agree the Forward Work Programme for 2020/21	Chair	
	Time of Future Meetings	To consider and approve the time of future meetings.	Chair	
End of February / Early March	Democratic Arrangements Year End Progress report	To present the Democratic Arrangements report for the reporting period.	Gemma Wasley	
	Annual Report of Head of Democratic Services	To present the Annual report of the Head of Democratic Services.	Bernadette Elias	
	Statement of Payments Made to Members 2019/20	To consider and agree the publication of the Statement of Payments made to Members.	Andrea Prosser	
	Schedule of Members Remuneration	To consider and agree the Schedule of Members Remuneration for 2020-21	Andrea Prosser	

This page is intentionally left blank